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1 DISCLAIMER 

This information memorandum is to introduce the subject matter and provide a 

general idea and information on the said matter. Although, the material included in 

this document is based on data / information gathered from various reliable sources; 

however, it is based upon certain assumptions, which may differ from case to case. 

The information has been provided on, as is where is basis without any warranties 

or assertions as to the correctness or soundness thereof. Although, due care and 

diligence has been taken to compile this document, the contained information may 

vary due to any change in any of the concerned factors, and the actual results may 

differ substantially from the presented information. SMEDA, its employees or agents 

do not assume any liability for any financial or other loss resulting from this 

memorandum in consequence of undertaking this activity. The contained 

information does not preclude any further professional advice. The prospective user 

of this memorandum is encouraged to carry out additional diligence and gather any 

information which is necessary for making an informed decision, including taking 

professional advice from a qualified consultant / technical expert before taking any 

decision to act upon the information. 

For more information on services offered by SMEDA, please contact our website: 

www.smeda.org.pk  

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.smeda.org.pk/
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2 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This proposed project presents details about the investment opportunity in the area 

of leather garments manufacturing. The product being focused is leather jackets, 

biker jackets and leather coats. This unit is also capable of manufacturing leather 

key rings, credit card holders, ladies bill folders and other small articles of leather 

without any addition of machinery. Quality hides & skins are available in the country 

and the tanning industry is well equipped to manufacture high quality finished 

leather. 

USA, Germany, France, United Kingdom and Italy are the major importers of 

Leather Garments. These countries have imported 48% of Leather Garments from 

the world in 2015. Pakistan has contributed 9% to the world exports during the same 

year, which shows the potential and gap in the export market which can be attained 

by focusing on technology, skilled labour and compliance with international 

standards. Government is also providing rebate on the export of leather products. 

Leather garments manufacturing business venture entails a total investment of 

about Rs. 24.29 million. This includes a capital investment of Rs. 22.22 million and 

a sum of Rs. 2.07 million as initial working capital. The project is financed through 

50% debt and 50% equity. The Net Present Value (NPV) of the project is around 

Rs. 20.82 million with an Internal Rate of Return (IRR) of 33% and a payback period 

of 3.81 years. The project will generate direct employment opportunity for 20 

persons and many others who will be on daily wages. 

Higher return on investment and a steady growth of business is expected with the 

entrepreneur having some prior experience or education in the related field of 

business. This pre-feasibility encompasses essential information regarding various 

aspects of starting a Leather Garments Manufacturing Unit business in Pakistan. 

3 INTRODUCTION TO SMEDA 

The Small and Medium Enterprises Development Authority (SMEDA) was 

established in October 1998 with an objective to provide fresh impetus to the 

economy through development of Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs).  

With a mission "to assist in employment generation and value addition to the 

national income, through development of the SME sector, by helping increase the 

number, scale and competitiveness of SMEs", SMEDA has carried out ‘sectoral 

research’ to identify policy, access to finance, business development services, 

strategic initiatives and institutional collaboration and networking initiatives.  

Preparation and dissemination of prefeasibility studies in key areas of investment 

has been a successful hallmark of SME facilitation by SMEDA.  
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Concurrent to the prefeasibility studies, a broad spectrum of business development 

services is also offered to the SMEs by SMEDA. These services include 

identification of experts and consultants and delivery of need based capacity 

building programs of different types in addition to business guidance through help 

desk services. 

4 PURPOSE OF THE DOCUMENT 

The objective of the pre-feasibility study is primarily to facilitate potential 

entrepreneurs in project identification for investment. The project pre-feasibility may 

form the basis of an important investment decision and in order to serve this 

objective, the document / study covers various aspects of project concept 

development, start-up, and production, marketing, finance and business 

management.   

The purpose of this document is to facilitate potential investors in Leather 

Garments Manufacturing Unit by providing them with a general understanding of 

the business with the intention of support in crucial investment decisions. 

The need to come up with pre-feasibility reports for undocumented or minimally 

documented sectors attains greater imminence as the research that precedes such 

reports reveals certain thumb rules; best practices developed by existing enterprises 

by trial and error, and certain industrial norms that become a guiding source 

regarding various aspects of business set-up and its successful management. 

Apart from carefully studying the whole document one must consider critical aspects 

provided later on, which form basis of any investment decision. 

5 BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT & PRODUCT 

The proposed project provides information on one of the sub sectors of leather 

manufacturing in Pakistan namely Leather Garments. This sub sector offers aspiring 

entrepreneurs a potent opportunity to establish their business in one of the top 

export oriented sectors of Pakistan. Easy and sustained access to high quality raw 

material coupled with availability of skilled labor presents this sub sector as an 

attractive opportunity for start-ups to venture into leather garments manufacturing in 

Pakistan.  

This is not a seasonal business as the demand in international market is always 

there. However, during the winter season in Europe and other northern countries its 

demand increases. Other than that, the event of Eid-ul-Adha becomes the source 

for cheaper raw material as a large number of animals are slaughtered during this 

time.  
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This proposed project provides details about investment opportunity in the area of 

leather garments manufacturing focusing on leather jackets, biker jackets and coats 

for men, women and children. This unit is also capable of manufacturing leather key 

rings, credit card holders, ladies bill folders and other small articles of leather without 

any additional machinery requirement. The leather garments manufacturing unit will 

primarily focus on exports, catering the international leather markets. 

This pre-feasibility is based on a unit with 30 stitching machines with the capacity to 

manufacture / stitch  45  garments per day on  8  hours shift.  

5.1 Production Process Flow  

The process flow of proposed unit will be as follow:  

Figure: Process Flow Diagram of Leather Garments Manufacturing 

 

5.2 Installed and Operational Capacities 

This pre-feasibility is based on 30 stitching machines with a capacity of 

manufacturing / stitching  45 garments per  8  hours shift. Total number of garments 

produced in year one would be  8,100  achieving  60% of the total installed capacity, 

while maximum capacity (90%) will be achieved with production reaching at 12,150 

garments in Year 7. 

Finished Leather

•Sheep, Goat, Cow & 
Buffalo
•Average leather required 

per garment is 34 Sq .Ft.

Matching

•Grain and colour 
matching of leather as 
per garment / job 
requirements

Cutting

•Panel cutting with the 
help of design templates
•Panels = Front, Back, 

Collar, Belt, Sleeves, Cuff

Assembly

•Fusing (Half & Full) 
Panels are rolled 
together with 
accessories
•Fusing, Padding, Lining, 

Elastic, Labels, Zippers, 
Shoulders pad, Buttons

Stitching

•One Stitcher one 
Garment or
•Chain process Folding, 

Lining, Sleeves, back , 
Front, Pockets, Joining, 
Finishing

Finishing

•Buttoning, Trimming, 
Touching and Ironing
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6 CRITICAL FACTORS 

The most critical considerations / factors for the success of this project are as 

follows: 

 Awareness about trends in international leather industry especially 

garments.  

 Higher return on investment and a steady growth of business is closely 

associated with continuous training and capacity building of the 

entrepreneur. Prior experience / education in the related field of business 

can be a big advantage. 

 Strict compliance regarding local and international environmental 

regulations. 

 Garments must be made from good quality leather conforming to the 

international standards like REACH (Registration, Evaluation, 

Authorization & Restriction of Chemical substances) and by use of efficient 

stitching machinery. 

 Ensuring availability of skilled labor and quality raw material. 

 Stringent supervision of the production process from procurement to 

cutting and stitching. 

 Ensuring continuous flow of export orders through aggressive marketing 

(website, social media) and international networking. 

7 GEOGRAPHICAL POTENTIAL FOR INVESTMENT 

Lahore, Karachi and Sialkot are three key clusters of leather manufacturing.  

Availability of skilled labor is important while selecting a location; all the above cities 

have adequate availability of skilled labor, raw material and support infrastructure. 

Leather Goods Manufacturing Unit can be established in the suburbs / periphery 

areas of these cities. 

8 POTENTIAL TARGET CUSTOMERS / MARKETS 

USA, Germany, France, United Kingdom and Italy are the major importers of 

Leather Garments. These countries have imported 1,687.90 million US dollars 

Leather Garments from the world in 2015 which is 48% of the world's imports of 

Leather Garments. Pakistan has exported 325.34 million US dollars Leather 

Garments in 2015 which is 9% of the world Leather Garments demand. This figure 

can be increased by focusing on technology, skilled labor and compliance with 
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international standards which ultimately increase the demand of Leather Garments 

from Pakistan. 

Export market usual customers include chain stores and major leather product 

brands in Europe and USA. 

9 PROJECT COST SUMMARY 

A detailed financial model has been developed to analyze the commercial viability 

of Leather Garments Manufacturing Unit. Various cost and revenue related 

assumptions along with results of the analysis are outlined in this section. 

The projected Income Statement, Cash Flow Statement and Balance Sheet are 

attached as annexure. 

9.1 Project Economics 

The installed production capacity of the project is 13,500 leather garments per year. 

However, during first year of operations it will operate at 60% of the installed 

capacity, producing 60% leather garments.  

The following table shows Internal Rate of Return, Payback Period and Net Present 

Value of the proposed venture. 

Table 1: Project Economics 

Description Details 

 Internal Rate of Return (IRR)  33% 

 Payback Period (Yrs.)   3.81  

Net Present Value (Rs.)  20,824,644  

9.2 Project Financing 

Following table provides details of the equity required and variables related to bank 

loan: 

Table 2: Project Financing 

Description Details 

Total Equity (50%) Rs. 12,143,866  

Bank Loan (50%) Rs. 12,143,866  

Markup to the Borrower (%age / annum) 14%                   

Tenure of the Loan (Years)  5  
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9.3 Project Cost 

Following fixed and working capital requirements have been identified for operations 

of the proposed business: 

Table 3: Project Cost 

Description Amount (Rs.) 

Capital Cost   

Land       7,500,000  

Building / Infrastructure       8,310,000  

Machinery & Equipment       3,507,000  

Furniture & Fixtures          788,000  

Office Equipment          513,000  

Pre-Operating Costs       1,602,717  

Total Capital Costs     22,220,717  

Working Capital   

Equipment Spare Part Inventory            98,886  

Raw Material Inventory       1,668,129  

Cash          300,000  

Total Working Capital       2,067,015  

Total Project Cost     24,287,731  

 

9.4 Space Requirement 

Approximately 1.50 kanal of land would be required for establishment of the 

proposed size unit. The area has been calculated on the basis of space required for 

production hall, management offices, storage and dispensary / health care facility 

for workers (in case of any medical emergency). However, units operating in the 

industry do not follow any set pattern. Following table shows calculations for project 

space requirement. 

The cost of land is estimated at Rs. 5.00 million per kanal; hence total cost of 

required land is Rs. 7.50 million. The land could be purchased in any commercial / 

industrial area of Lahore, Karachi or Sialkot where its clusters exist; or in any other 

place where quality raw material (leather) and skilled labor are easily available. The 

cost of construction of building for the proposed facility is provided in the table below: 
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Table 4: Space Requirement 

Description 
Estimated 

Area (Sq. ft) 
Unit Cost (Rs. 

/ Sq.ft) 
Total Cost (Rs.) 

Management / Admin 
Offices 

                 800                1,800        1,440,000  

Factory Area               4,000                1,200        4,800,000  

Store               1,000                1,500        1,500,000  

Open Area  / Drive Way                  700                   100             70,000  

Public Health Facilities                  250                2,000           500,000  

Total               6,750          8,310,000  

 

9.5 Machinery & Equipment Requirement 

Plant, machinery and equipment required for the proposed project are stated below:  

Table 5: Machinery & Equipment Requirement 

Description Quantity 
Unit Cost 

(Rs.) 
Total Cost 

(Rs.) 

Lock Stitch Machine Single Needle 30 45,000       1,350,000  

Lock Stitch Machine Double Needle 2 100,000          200,000  

Fusing Machine 1 80,000            80,000  

Skiving Machine 1 150,000          150,000  

Cutting Tables 2 20,000            40,000  

Electric Iron 4 3,000            12,000  

Store Racks 10 15,000          150,000  

Checking Tables 3 7,000            21,000  

Snap Attachment Machine (Manual) 1 15,000            15,000  

Strapping Machine 1 100,000          100,000  

Tools, gauges, etc.  1 100,000          100,000  

Over lock Machine (3 Threads) 1 25,000            25,000  

Electrification 38 3,000          114,000  

Generator (50KVA) 1 900,000          900,000  

Weigh Scale (100 kg) 1 50,000            50,000  

Miscellaneous 1 200,000          200,000  

Total Machinery & Equipment           3,507,000  

 

9.6 Furniture & Fixtures Requirement 

Details of the furniture and fixture required for the project are given below:  
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Table 6: Furniture & Fixtures Requirement 

Description Quantity Unit Cost (Rs.) Total Cost (Rs.) 

Office / Visitor chairs 10 6,000            60,000  

Office tables 5 10,000            50,000  

Factory Chairs 40 4,000          160,000  

Machine base table 34 2,000            68,000  

Ceiling Fans 20 3,000            60,000  

AC 1.5 Tons 2 60,000          120,000  

Industrial Air Coolers 2 40,000            80,000  

Lights 1 40,000            40,000  

Storage Racks, etc 1 100,000          100,000  

Fire Fighting Equipment 1 50,000            50,000  

Total Furniture & Fixtures              788,000  

 

9.7 Office Equipment Requirement 

Following office equipment will be required for the proposed unit: 

Table 7: Office Equipment Requirement 

Description Quantity Unit Cost (Rs.) Total Cost (Rs.) 

Computer Laptop 2 80,000          160,000  

Computer Desktop 4 40,000          160,000  

UPS 4 14,000            56,000  

Computer Printer 3 15,000            45,000  

Scanner Flat Bed 1 10,000            10,000  

Telephone 6 2,000            12,000  

Fax 1 20,000            20,000  

Miscellaneous 1 50,000            50,000  

Total Office Equipment              513,000  

 

9.8 Raw Material Requirements  

Leather garments are categorized according to the type of leather used. The 

different kinds of leather used are; cow, goat, buffalo and sheep leathers. The sale 

price of leather garments also depends on leather type. The garments made from 

cow and sheep leather are expensive as compared to garments from buffalo and 

goat leather. 
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On average, raw material required for a single leather garment is given in table 

below: 

Table 8: Raw Material Requirements 

Description Requirement Cost / Unit 
Total Cost 

(Rs.) 

Leather 34 Sq.ft. 110               3,740  

Lining 2 Meter 70                  158  

Wadding 2 Meter 80                  180  

Accessories 1 200                  200  

Packing 1 50                    50  

Cutting 1 80                    80  

Stitching 1 750                  750  

Total Cost per Garment (Avg.)                   5,158  

  

9.9 Human Resource Requirement 

Following table provides details of human resource required for this venture:  

Table 9: Human Resource Requirment 

Description No. of 
Employees 

Monthly Salary 
Per Person (Rs.) 

Owner / Manager 1          100,000  

Merchandiser 1            50,000  

Production In charge 1            40,000  

Pattern Master 1            30,000  

Accountant 1            25,000  

Store In charge 1            20,000  

Purchaser 1            20,000  

QC Inspectors 2            18,000  

Mechanic 1            18,000  

Export Documentation Officer 1            18,000  

Semi-Skilled Workers 3            16,000  

Security Guard 2            15,000  

Packers 2            14,000  

Sweeper 1            14,000  

Office Boy 1            14,000  

Total 20   
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9.10 Utilities and Other Costs 

An essential cost to be borne by the project is the cost of electricity. The electricity 

expenses are estimated to be around Rs. 1.54 million per annum. Furthermore, 

promotional expenses are estimated to be 1.0% of net revenue. 

9.11 Revenue Generation 

Based on the 60% capacity utilization, sales revenue during the first year of 

operations is estimated as under: 

Table 10: Revenue Generation – Year 1 

Description 
Sales Price 
(Rs. / Unit) 

First Year 
Production 

(Units) 

First Year 
Sales 

Revenue 
(Rs. 

Leather Garments (Leather 
Jackets, Biker Jackets, Coats, etc.) 

7,420 8,100 60,102,000 

Less: Finished Goods Inventory 7,420 (338) (2,504,250) 

Total  7,763 57,597,750 

 

10 CONTACT DETAILS 

In order to facilitate potential investors, contact details of private sector Service 

Providers relevant to the proposed project are given as under: 

10.1 Machinery Suppliers 

Name of Supplier Address Contact Number 

Rex Machinery (Pvt) 

Ltd 

Rex market, 6 Allama Iqbal 

Road, Lahore 
042-36375524 

Al Mahmood Sewing 

Machine Company 

7-Rex Market, 6-Allama 

Iqbal Road, Lahore 
042-36311300 

Inam Sewing Machine 
Madina Market, Defense 

Road, Sialkot 
0324-6131947 

 

10.2 Leather and Accessories Suppliers 

Name of Supplier Address Contact Number 

F.K. Leather 
Manga Mandi Road, Niaz 

Nagar, Kasur 
049-2761413 
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Kasur Tanneries (Pvt) 

Ltd.  
Inside Din Garh, Kasur.  049-2763535 

Mehar Dhaga Store 
Naseem Hayat Market, 

Sialkot 

052-4582497 

 

 

11 USEFUL WEB LINKS 

Small & Medium Enterprises Development 

Authority (SMEDA) 
www.smeda.org.pk   

Government of Pakistan www.pakistan.gov.pk  

Ministry of Industries & Production www.moip.gov.pk 

Government of Punjab www.punjab.gov.pk 

Government of Sindh www.sindh.gov.pk 

Government of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa www.khyberpakhtunkhwa.gov.pk 

Government of Balochistan www.balochistan.gov.pk 

Government of Gilgit Baltistan www.gilgitbaltistan.gov.pk 

Government of Azad Jamu Kashmir www.ajk.gov.pk  

Trade Development Authority of Pakistan 

(TDAP) 
www.tdap.gov.pk  

Security Commission of Pakistan (SECP) www.secp.gov.pk 

Federation of Pakistan Chambers of 

Commerce and Industry (FPCCI) 
www.fpcci.com.pk 

State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) www.sbp.org.pk 

Punjab Small Industries Corporation www.psic.gop.pk  

Sindh Small Industries Corporation www.ssic.gos.pk  

Punjab Vocational Training Council (PVTC) www.pvtc.gop.pk  

Technical Education and Vocational Training 

Authority (TEVTA) 
www.tevta.org    

Punjab Industrial Estates (PIE) www.pie.com.pk  

Faisalabad Industrial Estate Development 

and Management Company (FIEDMC)  
www.fiedmc.com.pk   

Pakistan Leather Garments Manufacturers & 

Exporters Association 
www.plgmea.pk 

Pakistan Institute of Fashion Design. www.pifd.edu.pk 

Pakistan Tanners Association www.pakistantanners.org 
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12 ANNEXURES 

12.1 Income Statement  
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12.2 Balance Sheet 
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12.3 Cash Flow Statement 
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13 KEY ASSUMPTIONS 

13.1 Operating Cost Assumptions 

 

Description Details 

Machine Maintenance (% Of Net Revenue) 2% 

Communication Expense (% of Admin Expenses) 5% 

Electricity Price Growth Rate 10% 

Salaries Growth Rate 10% 

Bad Debt Expense (%age of Net Revenue) 1% 

 

13.2 Production Assumptions 

Description Details 

Number of Machines Installed                    30  

Capacity Utilization (Year 1) 60% 

Maximum Capacity Utilization 90% 

Total Production Per 8 Hour Shift (Units)                    45  

Annual Production Capacity (Units)            13,500  

Hours Operational Per Day 8 

Days Operational Per Year 300 

Turnover Tax (%age of FoB Value) 1% 

Export Development Surcharge (%age of FoB Value) 0.25% 

 

13.3 Revenue Assumptions 

Description Details 

Sales Price Growth Rate 10% 

Rebate on Export (%age of FoB Value) 4.26% 

 


